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Incumbent? How to Win (Again)  

Whether it's time for contract renewal or your customer is releasing a new RFP for work that you 
are currently doing, being the incumbent provider is a tricky position. 
It's good because unseating a high-performing incumbent is very hard for your competitors.  But 
it's bad because it's yours to lose and losing will be doubly painful.  Not only do you stand to lose 
a new opportunity, but your current business is in jeopardy.   
As the insider, you have advantages.  Likewise, as the insider you have disadvantages.  Let's 
look at both.  
Incumbent Advantages 

• The customer's easiest decision is to keep doing business with you 
• Your customer knowledge and experience trumps your competitors. 
• The customer's team knows your team in depth on multiple levels. 
• You probably know everyone at the Buyers' Table. 
• You have the best opportunity to know what they are looking for and why they opened 

the bidding (e.g. end of contract; corporate requirement to re-bid every 3 years; new 
requirements). 

Incumbent Disadvantages 

•  You may be too close to see dangers and/or new opportunities.  
• There may be problem issues or problem people in the current relationship-yours or 

theirs.  
•  Competitors have been watching, waiting, and lobbying for this opportunity.  
• A new competitor, maybe a larger competitor, may drastically undercut your price to take 

away the business.  
• The customer may be restless for something "new" or "different."  
• Your capabilities have grown since the initial contract, but the customer has you pegged 

as a niche player. 

So, in a touchy circumstance, how are you going to handle your proposal?  Five key practices to 
keep you safe:   

1. Work your entire process.  That means run the opportunity through your Target Filter 
to make sure it still fits; determine your strategy and your theme; identify the three 
reasons you should win and three reasons you could lose.  Share these themes with your 
team and keep them top of mind.  Test the themes against your current work and the new 
RFP to ensure you are not missing new requirements or nuances.  Show up at the Open 
Meeting to show your interest and ask a few innocuous questions so they know you don't 
take renewal for granted.  
 

2. Convene your SMEs.  Many people in your company are likely interacting with the 
whale in different ways.  Turn that common knowledge held by each individual into 
shared knowledge understood by all. Engage them as members of the team preparing the 
proposal or bid.  If they identify real or perceived problems in the current relationship, 
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take them seriously and drill down to uncover the root cause and proposed remedies.  
 

3. Revisit the Whale Fears.  Is there anything about your current or proposed solutions that 
causes work, conflict, change, or fear of making a mistake among any decision makers on 
the customer side?  Now is the time to probe, to be certain that you are asking all the right 
questions to uncover any dissatisfaction.  They will have new fears about you now that 
they know you better.  They may be afraid that you will take them for granted, that you 
can't grow with them, or that you are part of the past rather than the future.  Now that you 
are an insider, you may look more like them, and they are looking for something shiny 
and new.  Likewise, you know more about their real fears today.  Work these subtly into 
your proposal in terms of what could happen if they change providers. 
  

4. Use your insider knowledge.   Your competitors are likely in a news blackout with 
restrictions on what they can learn and when they can learn it.  On the contrary, you and 
your team are on site every day.  Without violating the rules of engagement for the new 
contract, have a deliberate strategy for how to learn what you need to know in order to 
win.  Obviously, if you have had the chance to contribute to the RFP, you are well-
positioned.  But even if not, your team should determine what you need to learn and 
where best to get the relevant information.  
 

5. Look ahead, not back.  This will be the hardest part of the written proposal.  As 
incumbent, you will want to chronicle all of the good service you have provided as 
evidence that it will continue and even improve because of your knowledge, experience, 
and relationships.  But your competitors will come in with fresh ideas, new products and 
services, a different spin on deliverables-and you will be vulnerable to their innovation.  
With a renewed opportunity, how can you bring added value?  How will you leverage 
your insider knowledge to the customer's benefit?  Can you reduce costs through greater 
efficiency? 

The greatest danger you face is the customer perceiving that you take them for granted or that 
you are too entrenched to take them to their next level.  Approach this first as if it were brand 
new; then leverage your experience and insider expertise.  Respect and fear your insider status, 
and you will be positioned to win your whale--again. 
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